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23/9/2020

Dear Sirs,

THE HOO, 17 LYNDHURST GARDENS, HAMPSTEAD, NW3 5NU 

Further to:-

a) BPS’s report dated 16/7/2020, and;
b) Our letter dated 16/8/2020, and;
c) The BPS (Kelly Donnelly) e-mail to us dated 21/8/20, and;
d) Our e-mail to BPS dated 4/9/2020, and;
e) The BPS (Andrew Jones) e-mail to us dated 13/9/2020;

……….……we comment as follows:-

Jaga Developments (London) Ltd,
c/o Colin Leith,
Bowker Sadler Architecture,
Hatherlow House, 
Hatherlow, 
Romiley, 
Stockport 
SK6 3DY
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BLV:-

BPS continue to hold the opinion that a BLV of £2.544m is reasonable. We do not agree.

BPS’s £2.544m equates to £223.63 p.s.f. on the existing GIA whereas we presented 8 x D1 
transaction comparables in my report dated 5/6/2020 whereupon the values achieved ranged from 
the equivalent of £476 p.s.f. to £983 p.s.f. It is likely that the price range was influenced by the degree 
to which the buildings needed to be adapted for continued D1 use and some of the transaction also 
reflected trading facilities. One of my comparables was less relevant because it was sold with hope 
for C3 reversion usage in mind but with no guarantee that this would be possible. Nonetheless, they 
point to a value for D1 properties in need of some adaptation of at least £476 p.s.f. (in poor un-
adapted condition) to significantly more as adapted properties in good condition.

BPS think the existing building would be worth £6.5m (£571 p.s.f.) if it was “in a suitable condition 
for D1 Use’. We consider this to be on the low/pessimistic side for a property in reasonable existing 
condition and certainly too low for a fully refurbished/converted building (as was the basis of Neil 
Prowling’s £2.31m) based upon our original comparables. We also consider how BPS have got from 
here (i.e. £6.5m) to £2.544m to be unjustified and unreasonable as discussed below.

In their report dated 16/7/2020, BPS said:-
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However, the e-mail from BPS (Kelly) dated 21/8/2020 indicated that, prior to their viability report 
being issued, their QS (Neil Prowling) had more explicitly said this:-

With regard to the BLV I have a note that I gave you a figure of £2.1M plus contingency and fees. 
This was based on £2000/m² which I consider a reasonable allowance if a full conversion or 
refurbishment is planned. I can see the schedule in Appendix 1. Without having seen the property 
or a full survey or having any information on how the property should be presented in order to 
market it I can’t really give any better view than I have.

Furthermore, Andrew Jones of BPS (who is not their QS) has most recently said this:-

Aside from actual immediate wants of repair it is in poor condition generally and not in a tenantable 
state. Also as mentioned in our report the internal configuration is such that the accommodation is 
laid out in a series of small consulting rooms. This partly reflects the limitations of the listed 
structure which was doubtless originally built as a house with a series of domestic scale rooms 
with structural brick walls but also subsequent conversion to the former clinic use. There are 
numerous changes of level and restricted staircase access which would limit disabled access and 
therefore be unsuitable for a wide range of users in the D1 sector. I find it impossible to assume 
this accommodation would readily lend itself without alteration and refurbishment to uses such as 
a nursery or school when the rooms are so small and in such a poor state or indeed that any 
occupier wishing to take on the space for occupation would not seek to reflect the costs of repair, 
renovation and alteration within the price paid.

As we have previously stated, the Condition Survey by SDA Consulting indicates that the building 
is in reasonable condition and only requires the following expenditure:-

When selling The Hoo, we understand the NHS indicated that there are spatial inefficiencies within 
the building (from their perspective) and that it is costly to maintain. The Hoo was surplus to the 
requirements of the NHS Trust that owned and operated within it. Along with other buildings, their
desire was to consolidate their services into more appropriate building(s) elsewhere in connection 
with their particular community facility requirements, estates strategy, funding base and health 
offering. However, private medical consultancy practices (which would not be ‘community facilities’ 
because would only be available to, for example, BUPA or AXA/PPP members) typically do involve 
numerous consulting rooms within buildings that are sometimes inefficient (e.g. most of the 
numerous Harley Street practices and/or The Priory near Richmond Park) and private medical 
practices would be in a better position to operate out of The Hoo than a cash strapped NHS 
service.
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Bearing in mind all of the above:-

a) Hypothetically, it is perfectly reasonable to assume that D1 purchasers would bid for the 
subject property for D1 use. This might well be from; private schools, private medical 
consulting businesses/practices (e.g. a ‘Priory’) or training centres. Use by a school might 
require some internal re-configuration but use by a private medical consulting 
business/practice would not necessarily require any. With a move away from large classes 
to smaller classes (as is also more common in private schools in any event), the existing 
internal layout would also suit use by a private school and/or training centre. As to level 
changes within the building, the use a ramps (where required) and the installation of a lift 
could overcome any issue in this regard. As to the condition of the building fabric, we consider 
BPS are wrong and, whilst they pointed to the Condition Survey carried out by SDA 
Consulting late last year, they are seemingly unwilling to accept its conclusions.

b) We cannot comprehend why BPS can suggest that it is “impossible to assume this 
accommodation would readily lend itself without alteration and refurbishment to uses such 
as a nursery or school when the rooms are so small and in such a poor state or indeed that 
any occupier wishing to take on the space for occupation would not seek to reflect the costs 
of repair, renovation and alteration within the price paid”. We are not claiming that D1 
purchasers would not carry out any works but not substantially more than would have been 
relevant to a number of the comparables we have already presented where the achieved 
values (pre-works) were similar to what BPS are assuming post-works (i.e. around £571 
p.s.f.). Furthermore, there is no justification for the £2.1m cost (plus contingency and fees) 
provided by BPS’s QS (who had not seen the property when he came up with this figure) 
which he said was for a “full refurbishment or conversion” and with no mention of this being 
to ‘shell and core only’ as suggested by BPS viability report.

c) Based upon discussions with Gardiner & Theobald and the applicant’s architects (who have 
both inspected the existing property inside and out – as have I), it would be reasonable to 
assume that a D1 purchaser might spend up to £1m on the property post-purchase but this 
is already reflected in our £5.5m value based upon our comparables. If we deducted this 
from the £6.5m GDV considered reasonable by BPS for a refurbished building, we would 
arrive at the BLV we have reasonably assumed.

d) Lastly, in their AUV appraisals (where BPS have residualised down from £6.5m to £2.544m) 
they have deducted a developer’s profit of £975,171 whereas prospective D1 purchasers 
would typically be purchasing the property for their own use whereupon a developer’s profit 
deduction from such an appraisal is inappropriate. Add this back into to BPS’s assessment 
to date and they should be at a BLV of at least £2.544m + £975,171 = £3.52m. If one then 
reduces BPS’s unjustified and excessive ‘full refurbishment or conversion’ cost of £2.31m 
(plus contingency and fees) to what would still be ‘generous’ at £1m, we again arrive at a 
reasonable BLV of circa £5.5m.

In conclusion, BPS’s BLV is unjustifiably and unreasonably low whereas our BLV of £5.5m is justified 
and reasonable.

However, we consider the opinion from BPS (Andrew Jones) dated 13/9/2020 to be so unreasonable 
that we set this disagreement aside for now unless BPS wish to review their opinion upwards.
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Build Costs for Proposed Scheme:-

We attach G&T’s updated build cost assessment in Appendix 1 which totals £8.72m based upon 
the applicant’s required fit-out specification. Whilst other hypothetical applicants might pursue a 
different specification is debateable but any ‘dumbing down’ would diminish the assumed and so far 
agreed GDV – especially in a weaker post-COVID market for prime residential.

We expect BPS to question why this cost is where it is bearing in mind we consider even £1m of 
works cost to be generous to maintain the building in its existing D1 use. However, this is because 
the proposed residential use/user and assumed D1 use/user are completely different.

Review of Our Residual Profit Appraisal Vs BPS’s:-

We attach our original viability opinion (albeit switched into being a residual profit appraisal to ease 
comparison with BPS’s residual profit appraisal) in Appendix 2 and BPS’s in Appendix 3.

As can be appreciated, without any detailed re-working of the appraisals, BPS’s ‘surplus’ of 
£2,683,040 would be entirely eroded they inputted a reasonable BVLV of £5.5m and/or if they use 
a build cost of £8.72m and/or a reduced combination of the two.

Conclusion:-

The proposed scheme cannot viably sustain any affordable housing payment.

However, we assume the respective QSs will discuss build costs further and we await further
comment from BPS thereafter.

Yours faithfully,

James Brown BSc (Hons) MRICS
RICS Registered Valuer
Director
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